SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 8, 2011
9:16 a. m

9:16:35 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 9:16 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens; Tim Lankin, Staff, Senator Stevens;
Senator Hollis French; Andy Modderow, Staff, Senator French

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Nancy Hull, Owner, Alaska Mtorcycle Adventures; Philip
Freeman, Mdtoquest; Johanna Bal es, Departnent of Revenue
SUMVARY
SB 18 DURATI ON OF REGULAR LEQ SLATI VE SESSI ONS
SB 18 was HEARD and HELD in comrttee for further
consi derati on.
SB 19 PASSENCGER VEH CLE RENTAL TAX

SB 19 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.



#sb18
#sb19

SENATE BILL NO. 18

"An Act relating to the duration of regular sessions
of the legislature; and providing for an effective
date."

SENATE BILL NO. 19

"An Act excluding notorcycles and notor-driven cycles
fromthe passenger vehicle rental tax."

9:17:43 AM

SENATOR GARY STEVENS began with page 11 of the Al aska
Constitution. He quoted Article 2, Section 8: "The
| egi slature shall adjourn from regular session no |ater

than one hundred twenty consecutive cal endar days from the
date it convenes except that a regular session my be
extended once for up to ten consecutive cal endar days."” He
poi nted out that the founders felt it inportant to nake the
session period explicit in the constitution. He stressed
that the public voted to shorten the |egislative session
from 120 days to 90 days, through the initiative process in
2006. He explained that in nmany years prior to that
initiative, legislation had been introduced to shorten the
days of the legislative session, but none ever passed. He
felt that shortening the session gave nore power to the
governor and the admnistration, and restricts the ability
of the legislators to fulfill the job that they were
elected to do. He explained that sone constituents felt
that the session should stay short. They felt that if the
| egislature stayed in session for a |longer ©period,
government would get bloated. He explained that sone
| egislators like the 90-day session, because it allows them
nore time for personal endeavors; but nost felt that there
was not enough tine in the session to get all the business
done. He pointed out that the governor opposed the
extension of the session. He explained that the |egislators
understand their comunities, and are elected to represent
the communities and people of the state.

9:24: 00 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/08/11 9:16 A M



Senator Stevens stressed that discussion regarding the
length of legislative session was inportant. He stated that
the legislature was in a weaker position that it was before
the initiative passed. He enphasized that the 90-day
session was not effective. He felt the need to protect the
| egislative institution.

Senator A son remarked that there were many factors that
could have contributed to a decline in |legislative
candi dates. He wondered if the 90-day session really did
encourage people to run for office. Senator Stevens stated
that when the initiative was considered, it was thought
that nore people would run for the legislature if there was
a shorter session. He pointed out that 150 people ran in
2000, and 100 people ran in 2010. He did not know if the
decline in candidates was a direct result of the shortening
of the session, but pointed out that the goal of the
initiative did not work.

Senator Thomas wondered if there was a consideration of the
benefit of nore regularly scheduled interim neetings.
Senator Stevens replied that interim neetings did occur,
but it was very expensive. He stressed that nore work
shoul d get done in the tine that is given in Juneau.

9:29:41 AM

Co-Chair Stedman requested a difference between the
initiative process and constitution. Senator Stevens stated
that the constitution stated very clearly that the
| egislature will adjourn no later than 120 consecutive
cal endar days from the day in convened. The initiative
changed it to 90 days.

Co-Chair Hoffman renmarked that the l|ast session that the
| egi sl ature went past the 90 days. It was generally felt
that the |law was not broken, because it was stated in the
constitution that session allows for 120 days. Senator
St evens af firned.

TIM LAMKIN, STAFF, SENATOR STEVENS, presented a Power Poi nt

presentation: "Duration of Alaska's Legislative Sessions"
(copy on file). He stated that SB 18 struck a conproni se
90-day first session, 120-day second session. |In 2006

voters passed Ballot Measure 1 (BM 1), reducing the
| egislative sessions to 90 days; and BM 1 passed by a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/08/11 9:16 A M



margin of 50.8 percent in favor, in what was a notable |ow
voter turnout.

M. Lankin displayed slide 3, and noted that the chart
di spl ayed the voter turnout from 1976 to 2010. He pointed
out that the spikes were presidential elections. He
stressed that 2010 was the third | owest voter turnout since
1976.

M. Lankin displayed slide 4. He stated that the 90-day
session vote passed by 3,843 votes; there were 238,307
total cards <casts statewide during the 2006 genera
el ection; there were 231,507 total cards cast statew de on
BM 1; and there were 6,800 people who took a ballot, but
did not vote on BM 1.

M. Lankin displayed slide 5. He stated that the current
year would be the fourth session the |egislature has worked
under a 90-day limt since the initiative vote took place.
He stressed that the best interests of Alaskans were not
being served, nor were the argunents nmade to support
passing BM1 in the first place being proven valid.

M. Lankin discussed slide 6. He highlighted some argunents
that were made in favor of shortening the session
reducing the cost of governnent, 27 other states had
shorter sessions than Alaska; legislation to shorten the
session had been introduced 24 tinmes since 1990 with no
action taken; and less time in Juneau would reduce tine
away from hone, famly, private sector work, etc, and thus
woul d incentivize nore quality individuals to run for state
of fice.

9: 34: 48 AM

M. Lankin presented slide 7: "Reducing the Cost of
Governnment." He stated that the election panphlet stated
that "we save 30 days of per diem and expenses of operation
of the |egislature-paper, copy costs, transportation, etc."
He remarked that actual session costs had been reduced, but
the overall operating budget of the legislature had
increased. He stated that legislative salaries, session per
diem and travel expenses had increased, and much of it
accrues throughout the year, not just during session. He
remarked that following the first 90-day regular session,
there were two 30-day special sessions in 2008; and there

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/08/11 9:16 A M



had also been an increase in traveling interim conmttee
heari ngs.

M. Lankin discussed slide 8: "Interim Conmttee Meeting of
t he Al aska Legislature 2000-2010." He stated that the chart
hel ped to illustrate the frequency of interimactivity from
2000 to 2010. He remarked that the peaks were non-el ection
years. He noted that in 2008, 2009, and 2010 there were
significant increases in interimactivities in Anchorage.

M. Lankin displayed slide 9: "Al aska Legislative Sessions
since Statehood - Days/Session.”" He stated that the chart
denonstrated the actual nunber of days in session since
1959. He pointed out that the there was no |limt to the
| egi slative session until 1982, when the public voted to
[imt the legislative session. In 1984, a constitutional
amendnent was passed to limt the session to 120 days.

M. Lankin discussed slide 10, which displayed a zero
fiscal note.

M. Lankin presented slide 11. He stated that the noney
that was expected to be saved was put aside in the
anticipation of increased special sessions and interim
costs. The fiscal note did not say there would be no cost,
rather that the costs would be absorbed by the existing
budget - no new appropriati on was necessary.

Co-Chair Stednan stated that the two fiscal notes that were
currently attached to the bill reflected the cost of
inpl ementation. He stressed that there was a budgetary

i mpact .
9:39:11 AM

M. Lankin discussed slide 12. He stated that the savings
of approximately $800,000 would represent about 2 percent
of the legislature's total operating budget. He noted that
the roughly $50 nmillion spent to operate the legislative
branch of governnment was a "drop in the bucket" conpared to
the approximately $10 billion spent by the executive branch
agenci es.

M. Lankin presented slide 13: "Point 1 - There is not a
significant, if any, cost 'savings' (reduction in the cost
of gover nment ) by mintaining a 90-day |egislative
session.”

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/08/11 9:16 A M



M. Lankin displayed slide 14, and brought up the common
concern about other states limting the duration of their
| egi sl ati ve sessions.

M. Lankin discussed slide 15, and stated that 27 other
states had sessions that were shorter than Al aska's
| egi sl ati ve session.

M. Lankin presented slide 16: "Met hods by  Wich
Legislative Sessions are Limted." He stressed that 28
states were limted by their constitutions. He pointed out
that Al aska has both constitution and statutory limts. He
noted that 5 states had statutory limts. He remarked that
3 states had chanber rule, which neans that at the
beginning of each session, the |eadership wites a
resol ution deciding on an adjournnent date. He noted that 3
states had indirect nethod, which neant that states would
decide that after day X, the legislators were no |onger
granted per diem He pointed out that 11 states had no
i nposed session limt.

M. Lankin remarked that there was a distinction between
cal endar days and actual |egislative days. He pointed out
that, in Alaska, the Senate neets Mnday, Wadnesday, and
Friday, which would be considered three |egislative days,
in a 7 calendar day period. He stressed that Al aska
currently operated under a 90 calendar day system He
poi nted out that Al abanma had 30 |egislative days out of 105
cal endar days. He stressed that Hawaii, Indiana, and
Tennessee all had nore calendar days in a session than
Al aska.

M. Lankin displayed slide 17, and remarked that Al aska was
had the 27th | ongest session based on actual cal endar days.

M. Lankin discussed slide 18, and noted that every state
was different, unique, and had its own reasons for choosing
to operate its legislature the way it does; and simlarly,
Al aska was known as a "do-it-yourself" type state.

M. Lankin presented slide 19. He stressed that Alaska is

al nost directly in the mddle of all the other states, and
SB 18 woul d nove Al aska even closer to the m ddle.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/08/11 9:16 A M



M. Lankin displayed slide 20. He noted that |egislation
was introduced 24 times since 1990 in an effort to shorten
t he session, and each attenpt failed.

M. Lankin discussed slide 21. He remarked that |egislation
that had no I|ikelihood of passing was introduced al nost
every day of the session. The legislature had the
prerogative to act or not act on any issue, and there were
al ways nore issues than there were actions.

M. Lankin presented slide 22. The graph displayed the data
of the Alaska legislation that was introduced, versus the
| egi slation that was passed from 1979 to 2010. He remnarked
that there was substantial work that was done behind the
scenes, and necessary to effective |egislatures.

M. Lankin displayed slide 23, which displayed Al aska as
the 44th state in average pieces of legislation introduced
per year from 2002 to 2010.

M. Lankin discussed slide 24, which ranked Alaska as
fourth from the bottom of average pieces of I|egislation
passed by state |egislatures from 2002 to 2010.

9:45: 45 AM

M. Lankin presented slide 25, and remarked that Al aska was
22nd anong states in the ratio of legislation introduced to
| egi slation that was passed by state |egislatures from 2002
to 2010.

M. Lankin displayed slide 26, and noted that |egislation
was often presented and not passed. Legislation that has no
i kelihood of passing was introduced alnost every day of
sessi on.

M. Lankin discussed slide 27. He posed the question: "By
the reasoning of this argunment supporting BM 1, should any
bill that fails to pass the legislature after X nunber of
attenpts be automatically forwarded to the ballot box for a
vote?" He retorted with slide 28, and stated that it was
not a valid argunent to say sonething should becone |aw
sinply because the legislature had consistently chosen not
to make it a law on its own.

M. Lankin discussed slide 29. He remarked that a shorter
session neant less tine away from hone, away from famly,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/08/11 9:16 A M



away from work in the private sector, etc, and thus wll
incent nore conpetition between quality individuals to run
for office.

M. Lankin presented slide 30. He stated that since the
initiative passing in 2006, the total nunber of candi dates
that have filed for Alaska State House and Senate had
significantly declined.

M. Lankin displayed slide 31. He stated that since the
2006 vote to shorten the legislative sessions, the
candi date pool shrank by 20 percent; the opposite of what
was argued in favor of passing BM 1.

M. Lankin discussed slide 32, and discussed other
considerations to restore a 120-day | egislative session. He
stated that the 120-day restoration would allow for nore
time for public testinmony and deliberative processes; ease
staff wor k| oads; nore time for House  Subconmmittee
Eval uation Survey; and encourage a bal ance of power between
t he executive branch and | egislative branch of governnent.

Co-Chair Stednman nentioned two fiscal notes from the
Legislative Affairs Agency. He pointed out that the first
fiscal note reflected a $450,000 increase in session
expenses every other year; and the second reflected a
$413,000 increase in salaries and allowances every other
year .

9:51:13 AM

Senator O son queried the effective date of the bill. M.
Lankin replied that the effective date of the bill would be
January 1, 2012.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked that there was noney in the
system already to cover the 2012 cost.

Co-Chair Stedman remarked that the legislature had the
power of appropriation and oversight. He stressed that nost
of the tinme was taken focusing on the budgets, and so it

was difficult to deal wth some major policy issues: i.e
oil and gas taxation. He stressed that the 90-day limt
placed a substantial tine restraint in dealing wth

inportant policy issues. He stressed that the |egislature
was the basis of public involvenent of government.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/08/11 9:16 A M



Senator Stevens felt the discussions regarding extending
the session were inportant, and wel coned any anendnents for
consi der at i on.

SB 18 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH stated that SB 19 would renove the 10
percent vehicle rental tax on notorcycle rentals. He
remarked that with the short sumer in Al aska and the
econonic benefits of independent tourism the |egislature
shoul d support the emergi ng notorcycle rental industry.

9:57:23 AM

ANDY MODEROW STAFF, SENATOR FRENCH, introduced hinself.

Co-Chair Stednman pointed out the fiscal note from the
Department of Revenue, that displayed a $12,000 reduction
in state revenue.

NANCY HULL, OWMER, ALASKA MOTORCYCLE ADVENTURES (via
tel econference), spoke in favor of SB 19.

PH LI P FREEMAN, MOTOQUEST (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 19.

10: 03: 57 AM

Co- Chair Stedman wondered why the taxes were originally not
paid to the state. JOHANNA BALES, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
(DOR) (via teleconference), replied that the know edge of
notorcycle rental tax was not brought to the attention of
DOR until four or five years after the vehicle rental tax
cane into effect. She stressed that notorcycle rentals did
neet the definition of passenger vehicles under the
statute.

Co-Chair Stednman requested DOR supply the committee wth
their official stance regarding the notorcycle rental tax
el i m nation.

Senator O son wondered if there could nerely be a decrease,

rather than an elimnation of the tax all together. Senator
French replied that he wuld be happy to discuss a

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/08/11 9:16 A M



decrease, but felt that the tax revenue was already
i nsignificant.

Co-Chair Stedman wondered why there was a lack of
collection for four years. Senator French replied that he
understood it as nerely an oversight. He felt that many of
the businesses may have not even been noticed by the
Depart ment of Revenue.

10: 10: 11 AM

Senat or Thomas agreed that it probably was an oversight,
and | ooked at the list of vehicles in the bill. Senator
French remarked that the list in the bill referred to

exceptions of what a passenger vehicle is considered. He
stressed that notorcycles should be included in that |ist.

SB 19 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:12 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/08/11 9:16 A M



